

# Bylaws of Greater Egleston High School

## Governing Board

### ARTICLE I - SCHOOL VISION & MISSION

#### Section 1 - Vision

tbd at next board meeting

#### Section 2 - Mission

tbd at next board meeting

### ARTICLE II - PURPOSE

The Greater Egleston High School Governing board is charged to carry out the school's vision and mission in compliance with state laws.

The governing board is responsible for the following:

- Setting and maintaining the school vision.
- Budget approval.
- Selecting, supervising, and evaluating the Head of School, with final approval by the Superintendent.
- Approving election-to-work agreement.
- Maintaining a written and approved dispute resolution process.
- Annually reviewing the school's progress on indicators of student engagement and achievement, and ensure that there is a plan in place to address gaps.
- Maintaining a learning community that is equitable, celebrates diversity and addresses issues of inequity.
- Meeting the requirements of the Open Meeting Law

As well, the board will maintain a long-term strategic plan focused on outcomes to guide the work of the school.

Implementation of Governing board decisions as well as the overall management of the school is the primary role of the Head of School and the Greater Egleston High School faculty.

### ARTICLE III - MEMBERS

#### Section 1 - Members

A. Members. The Governing board will have sixteen voting members, as follows:

- (1) Head of School.
- (2) Four staff representatives.

- (4) Four family representatives.
- (5) One student representative.
- (5) No more than 8 community members.
- (6) Such ex-officio members as the Governing Board deems necessary.

### **Section 2 - Election**

By the regularly scheduled October meeting of each year, all representative seats shall be filled.

- A. Faculty Representatives - An administrator and a BTU Representative shall run elections for Faculty Representatives to the Governing Board. Nominations for the Faculty Representative will be by self-nomination. Votes will be taken by secret ballot with five days notice to staff. Should there be a tie, the Head of School shall cast the deciding vote.
- B. Family Representatives. The Greater Egleston High School Parent Council shall be responsible for conducting elections for the Family Representatives.
- C. Student Representative - The student representative will be the elected president of the student government.
- D. Community Partners - The Governing Board will review and select the Community Partners through its governance committee.

### **Section 3 - Duties of Members**

Each member of the Governing board is expected to perform the following activities:

- A. Members will become familiar with the vision And mission of Greater Egleston High School and will attempt, through deliberation and deed, to act in the best interests of the Greater Egleston High School.
- B. Members will engage in and encourage communication with the members of the Greater Egleston High School community so that decisions reflect school-wide agreement as much as possible.
- C. Members will adhere to the rules, regulations, and policies of the School board, the Pilot School autonomies, the Greater Egleston High School bylaws, and state and federal laws.
- D. Members will attend all regularly scheduled board meetings.
- E. In the event of a Board planning retreat, members will be expected to attend
- F. The absence of a board member from three regularly scheduled meetings within the school year without notification to the Chair will constitute a voluntary resignation. More than three absences, with or without notification to the chair, shall likewise constitute voluntary resignation.
- G. A board member may attend no more than 2 meetings via real-time, electronic and auditory participation.
- H. Members will participate in the board committee work.
- I. Members will honor all aspects of confidentiality and meeting norms.

## **ARTICLE IV OFFICERS**

### **Section 1**

Officers and Duties. The officers for the Greater Egleston High School shall be elected from the membership of the Governing board. The officers shall consist of Chair, Vice-Chair, Treasurer, and Secretary.

A. Eligibility - The Head of School shall not serve as an officer of the board. Employees of the Boston Public Schools shall not serve the chair or vice chair of the board.

B. The duties of the Chair shall be:

- (1) To preside over all board meetings and sign the minutes thereof;
- (2) To serve as the Chair of the Executive Committee;
- (3) To lead the board as it develops broad policies, does long-range strategic planning, and carries out the task necessary to achieving the purpose of the school; and
- (4) To work with the Head of School and the Vice-Chair to prepare an agenda for the regular and special meetings of the board.

C. The duties of the Vice-Chair shall be:

- (1) To attend all meetings of the board and the Executive Committee;
- (2) To perform Chair's duties during his or her absence or inability to serve;
- (3) To assist the Chair in any way possible.

D. The duties of the Treasurer shall be:

- (1) To attend all meetings of the board and the Executive Committee;
- (2) To serve as the Chair of the Finance Committee;
- (3) To ensure that all funds received and expended are handled in accordance with the sound business and accounting practices and within the policies authorized by the board; and
- (4) To work with the Head of School to provide financial updates at least once per quarter to the board.

E. The duties of the Secretary shall be:

- (1) To attend all meetings of the board and the Executive Committee;
- (2) To take and maintain accurate minutes of board and Executive Committee meetings;
- (3) To distribute the board meeting minutes to all staff, parents, and community members; and (4) To keep records of attendance at board and subcommittee meetings, issue notice of meetings, and accurate minutes as permanent documents in safekeeping.

## **Section 2 - Election of Officers**

A. Election

Board election of officers shall be held by the regularly scheduled November meeting of each year.

B. Voting Procedures

Voting shall be by secret ballot and a majority vote of the Governing Board members at the meeting at which a quorum is present and voting shall elect. Should there be a tie, the Head of School shall cast the deciding vote.

## **ARTICLE V TERM LIMITATIONS**

### **Section 1 - Members**

#### A. Limitations for Members.

- (1) The Faculty Representatives shall serve a one-year term.
- (2) The Family Representatives shall serve a one-year term.
- (3) The Community Partners shall serve two-year terms.

#### B. Consecutive Terms.

- (1) A Faculty Representative may serve a maximum of three consecutive one-year terms.
- (2) A Family Representative may serve a maximum of three consecutive one-year terms.
- (3) A Community Partner may serve a maximum of three consecutive two-year terms.

### **Section 2 - Terms of Office**

#### A. Chair.

- (1) The Chair shall serve a two-year term.
- (2) The Chair may serve a maximum of three consecutive two-year terms.

#### B. Vice-Chair.

- (1) The Vice-Chair shall serve a two-year term.
- (2) The Vice-Chair may serve a maximum of three consecutive two-year terms.

#### C. Treasurer.

- (1) The Treasurer shall serve a two-year term.
- (2) The Treasurer may serve a maximum of three consecutive two-year terms.

#### D. Secretary.

- (1) The Secretary shall serve a two-year term.
- (2) The Secretary may serve a maximum of three consecutive two-year terms.

### **Section 3 - Required Absence from Board**

A. Members. Members of the Governing Board must take a 1-year furlough after reaching the maximum term limits.

B. Officers. Officers of the Governing Board must take a 2-year furlough after reaching the maximum term limits.

## **ARTICLE VI MEETINGS**

### **Section 1 - Meetings.**

#### **A. Regular Meetings**

- (1) A minimum of five Governing Board meetings shall be scheduled and held each school year.
- (2) All Governing Board meetings are open to the public except when in Executive Session.

## **B. Special Meetings**

- (1) Special meetings may be called by the Executive Committee in consultation with the Head of School, should the need arise.
- (2) A special meeting may be called upon the written request of a majority of the members of the Governing Board.
- (3) The Secretary shall notify all members of the time, place and purpose of the meeting.

## **Section 2 - Notice of Board Meetings**

- A. Notice of Meetings. A written notice of each regular meeting, stating the place, date and time, and purposes of the meeting shall be given at least seven (7) days before the meeting to each Member and the public
- B. Schedule of Meetings. The Governing Board will provide staff and parents with the list of all the meetings for the academic year by September 1st of each academic year.
- C. Posting of Schedule. The notice of meetings and the schedule of meetings should be posted to the Greater Egleston High School website.

## **Section 3 - Communication**

- A. Distribution of Minutes. The Secretary shall make the minutes of the Governing Board available to all faculty, parents, and students by posting the minutes to the Greater Egleston High School website upon approval of the Board.

## **Section 4 - Quorum**

A quorum shall constitute a majority of a minimum of 50% voting members who are present at a meeting of the Board.

## **Section 5 - Voting**

Whenever possible, the Governing Board shall reach consensus on decisions. However, a simple majority vote of a quorum shall be required to authorize board decisions. A 2/3 vote of quorum will be required for decisions that change the vision of the school described at the start of this document.

# **ARTICLE VII COMMITTEES**

## **Section 1 - Executive Committee.**

The Board Chair shall chair the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall consist of the officers of the board, the Head of School, at least one Faculty Representative, at least one Family Representative, and at least one Community Partner member if not represented by an Officer.

### **A. Duties.**

- (1) The Executive Committee shall have the power to act between meetings of the board based upon a majority vote of the Executive Committee members who are present at the meeting and must include at least two officers, one of which must be the Chair or Vice-Chair, and the Head of School; Attendance at the Executive meetings can be via physical presence or electronic auditory participation;

- (2) Make recommendations to the board, and to carry out special responsibilities assigned by the board;
- (3) Meet in cases where strict confidentiality is required and will not be open to the public; and
- (4) Report any interim action to the full board at the next meeting.

### **Section 2 - Teaching and Learning Committee**

The Board Chair shall chair the Personnel Committee, unless she/he designates another member to be chair.

#### **A. Duties.**

- (1) Ensure that a process is in place for the hiring of staff;
- (2) Annually review and update of the Election to Work Agreement by January 15th of each year;
- (3) Respond to any specific faculty disputes that rise to the level of the board as described in the Election to Work Agreement Dispute Resolution Process; The Faculty Representative shall not be present at meetings that address personnel issues or inquiries; and
- (4) Ensure that a fair and efficient process for the evaluation of the Head of School is conducted each year.
- (5) Monitor progress on a variety of measures around student engagement and performance.

### **Section 3 - Finance Committee**

The Treasurer shall chair the finance committee. The Finance Committee can consist of Board members or school personnel designated by the Board Chair or the Head of School.

#### **A. Duties.**

- (1) Meet at least once each month, or on a different schedule approved by the chair.
- (2) Report to the Governing Board at least once every quarter.
- (3) Be responsible for fiscal oversight of the school.

### **Section 4 - Additional Committees**

The board may choose to establish other committees as needed.

## **ARTICLE VIII PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY**

The rules contained in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern the board in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws.

## **ARTICLE IX AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS**

These Bylaws may be amended at any regular business meeting of the board by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of elected board members, provided notice of any proposed amendments has been given at the previous meeting. The proposed bylaws herein and any subsequent amendments to these bylaws will be posted for

a period of two weeks for public input. After two weeks the bylaws will become effective upon ratification by consensus of the Greater Egleston High School Governing Board.